
Board Members 
Joe Neves, District 1, Vice-Chairman 
Richard Valle, District 2 
Doug Verboon, District 3 
Craig Pedersen, District 4, Chairman 
Richard Fagundes, District 5 

Staff  
Larry Spikes, Interim County Admin. Officer 
Carrie Woolley, Interim County Counsel 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Agenda 

Date: Tuesday, July 27, 2021
Time: 9:00 a.m.      
Place: Board of Supervisors Chambers, Kings County Government Center

1400 W. Lacey Boulevard, Hanford, California  93230

 (559) 852-2362    FAX (559) 585-8047       website: https://www.countyofkings.com 

COUNTY OF KINGS PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOL IN RESPONSE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 
California Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 on March 12, 2020 and March 17, 2020, 
respectively, relating to the convening of public agency meetings in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  The Board of Supervisors will 
convene their public meetings via video and teleconference as detailed below.  Pursuant to the Executive Orders, and to maintain the 
orderly conduct of the meeting, Kings County will allow the Board Supervisors, County staff and interested members of the public to 
attend the meeting telephonically or by the Internet, and to participate in the meeting in the Board’s Chambers. 

Members of the public who wish to only observe the meeting virtually can do so via the worldwide web at: 
https://youtu.be/oJIep8_DxNU   

Members of the public who wish to participate in the meeting virtually and make public comment can do so via the worldwide 
web at: https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=m64fc71dd46ec93b9545cfd32d8c7023f 

Members of the public who wish to comment may submit written comments on any matter within the Board’s subject matter 

jurisdiction, regardless of whether it is on the agenda for Board consideration or action, and those comments will become part of the 

administrative record of the meeting.  Comments will not be read into the record, the Clerk of the Board will only read the names of 

who have submitted comments into the record.  Written comments received by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than 

8:30 a.m. on the morning of the noticed meeting will be included in the record, those comments received after 8:30 a.m. will be read 

into the record of the next meeting.  To submit written comments by email, please forward them to  bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us or 

by U.S. Mail, please forward them to:  Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, County of Kings, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230. 

10:00 AM - REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING INSTRUCTIONS – ENGLISH 

To attend virtually in English and make public comment, the meeting link is: 
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=m64fc71dd46ec93b9545cfd32d8c7023f 

 Members of the public, who participate via their computers or through the WebEx application platform, may provide public

comment at the meeting by using the “Raise Your Hand” function and you will be called upon when it is your turn to speak.

Testimony will be limited to five (5) minutes per speaker during the public hearing section of the meeting.

 If you have trouble logging in through the Internet, you may join the meeting via telephone by calling (415) 655-0003, then enter

the access code of 1779 58 2188#.

If you just wish to only observe the public hearing and not make comments access this YouTube https://youtu.be/oJIep8_DxNU 

10:00 AM - INSTRUCCIONES PARA LA AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA DE REDISTRIBUCIÓN - ESPAÑOL 

Para asistir virtualmente en inglés y hacer comentarios públicos, el enlace de la reunión es: 
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mfe56fdc44ccf033cb021c3bfce47e42e 

 Los miembros del público, que participan a través de sus computadoras o mediante la aplicación WebEx, pueden proporcionar

comentarios públicos en la reunión mediante la función "Levantar la mano" y se le llamará cuando sea su turno de hablar. El

testimonio se limitará a cinco (5) minutos por orador durante la sección de audiencia pública de la reunión.

 Si tiene problemas para iniciar sesión a través de Internet, puede unirse a la reunión por teléfono llamando al (415) 655-0003,

luego ingrese el código de acceso 1777 30 6369#

Si solo desea observar la audiencia pública y no hacer comentarios acceda a este enlace de YouTube https://youtu.be/vjIeiT5_bsA 

https://www.countyofkings.com/
https://youtu.be/oJIep8_DxNU
http://www.countyofkings.com/
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=m64fc71dd46ec93b9545cfd32d8c7023f
mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=m64fc71dd46ec93b9545cfd32d8c7023f
https://youtu.be/oJIep8_DxNU
https://countyofkings.webex.com/countyofkings/j.php?MTID=mfe56fdc44ccf033cb021c3bfce47e42e
https://youtu.be/vjIeiT5_bsA


Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 

 

I.  9:00 AM CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
INVOCATION – Pastor Arthur Fox – New Hope Orthodox Presbyterian Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

   
II.  UNSCHEDULED APPEARANCES 

Any person may directly address the Board at this time on any item on the agenda, or on any other 
items of interest to the public, that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Two (2) 
minutes are allowed for each item. 

   
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  A. Report Out of Closed Session on July 20, 2021. 
  B. Approval of the minutes from the July 20, 2021 regular meeting. 
   
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  A. Behavioral Health Department: 
   1. Consider approving the Agreement with Arieh Whisenhunt to act as the Kings County 

Behavioral Health Mental Health Services Act Innovation Multiple Organization Shared 
Telepsychiatry Project Psychiatrist and Department Medical Director, retroactively effective 
from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2024. 

  B. Probation Department: 
   1. a. Consider authorizing the County Administrative Officer and County Counsel to sign the 

Inter-local Agreement between the City of Hanford and the County of Kings to allow 
Hanford Police Department to apply for funding under the Justice Assistance Grant 
Program;  and  

    b. Acknowledge that Probation Department will receive funding in the amount of $10,595 
for the year 2021. 

  C. Sheriff’s Department: 
   1. Consider authorizing Sheriff Dave Robinson to sign a Memorandum of Understanding and 

Court Security Plan with the Superior Court of California, retroactively effective from July 1, 
2021 to June 30, 2024. 

  D. Administration: 
   1. Consider approving the Agreement with Vanir Construction Management Incorporated for 

capital project management services. 
   
V.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  A. Administration – Larry Spikes 

Waste Management – Bob Henry 
   1. Consider accepting the quarterly report from Chemical Waste Management.  
     
  B. Fire Department – William Lynch/Josh Cunningham 
   1. Consider accepting the two Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression Systems from the Corcoran District 

Hospital Board of Trustees to assist in providing life saving cardiopulmonary resuscitation to 
the City of Corcoran residents. 

     
  C. Sheriff’s Department – Dave Robinson 
   1. a. Consider authorizing the purchase of the Composite Technology Law Enforcement 

fixed wing law enforcement aircraft by paying the remaining lease balance;  and 
    b. Consider declaring the Composite Technology Law Enforcement aircraft and its included 

equipment as surplus property; and 
    c. Authorize the sale as surplus equipment at public auction; and 
    d. Adopt the budget change.  (4/5 vote required) 



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
July 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 

 

  D. Administration – Larry Spikes/Domingo Cruz 
Public Works Department – Dominic Tyburski 

   1. a. Consider awarding the Senate Bill 81 Project’s Notice to Proceed to Bowe Contractors 
Inc.; and 

    b. Consider approving the Construction Agreement; and 
    c. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve change orders up to ten percent; and 
    d. Approve the Agreement Amendment number two for Vanir Construction 

Management, Inc. for additional program management services during the 
construction phase.  

   
  E. Public Health Department – Edward Hill 
   1. Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and 

proximate threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take 
action as deemed necessary. 

   
VI. 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING  
  Administration – Larry Spikes/Kyria Martinez 

County Counsel – Carrie Woolley/Diane Freeman 
   1. Conduct the County’s second public hearing for the County’s 2021 Supervisorial 

Redistricting process. 
   
VII.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

On their own initiative, Board Members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code Section 54954.2a). 

   Board Correspondence 
   Upcoming Events 
   Information on Future Agenda Items 
    
VIII.  CLOSED SESSION  
   Significant Exposure to Litigation: 1 Case [Govt. Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2)]  
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  Director of Finance 
   Conference with Labor Negotiator/Meet and Confer: [Govt. Code Section 54957.6] 
   Negotiators:  Larry Spikes, Kyria Martinez, Henie Ring, Che Johnson of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
     General Unit – CLOCEA 
     Supervisors Unit – CLOCEA 
     Firefighter’s Association 
     Detention’s Deputy Association 
      
IX. 11:00 AM CALIFORNIA PUBLIC FINANCE AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Agenda   
July 27, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 

 

X.  ADJOURNMENT 
  The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Tuesday, August 3, 2021, at 9:00 a.m.   
   

FUTURE MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

 August 3   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 9   9:00 AM  Board of Equalization Regular Meeting 

 August 10   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 17   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting/Budget Hearing  

 August 18   9:00 AM  Budget Hearing Continued 

 August 23   9:00 AM  Board of Equalization Regular Meeting 

 August 24   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 30   9:00 AM  Board of Equalization Regular Meeting 

 August 31   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting  

 August 31  10:00 AM  Third Public Hearing - Redistricting 

Agenda backup information and any public records provided to the Board after the posting of the agenda will be available for 
the public to review at the Board of Supervisors office, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd, Hanford, for the meeting date listed on this 
agenda. 

 



  
Board Members 
Joe Neves, District 1, Vice-Chairman 
Richard Valle, District 2 
Doug Verboon, District 3 
Craig Pedersen, District 4, Chairman 
Richard Fagundes, District 5 

 

 

 
 

 
Staff  
Larry Spikes, Interim County Admin. Officer 
Carrie Woolley, Assistant County Counsel 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board 

Board of Supervisors 
Regular Meeting Action Summary 

 

Date:  Tuesday, July 20, 2021 
Time:             9:00 a.m.                                
Place: Board of Supervisors Chambers, Kings County Government Center 
 1400 W. Lacey Boulevard, Hanford, California  93230 

 
 (559) 852-2362    FAX (559) 585-8047         website: https://www.countyofkings.com 

 

COUNTY OF KINGS PUBLIC MEETING PROTOCOL IN RESPONSE TO CORONAVIRUS COVID-19 
    California Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20 on March 12, 2020 and March 17, 2020, 

respectively, relating to the convening of public agency meetings in light of the COVID-19 pandemic.  On December 3, 2020, the State 
announced a regional Stay-at-Home order to slow the spread of COVID-19. In response to the State’s additional restrictions, and for 
the protection of the public’s health, the Board of Supervisors will convene their public meetings via video and teleconference as 
detailed below, and will close its Board Chambers to the public until further notice. 
    Pursuant to the Executive Orders, and to maintain the orderly conduct of the meeting, Kings County will allow the Board 
Supervisors, County staff and interested members of the public to attend the meeting telephonically or by the Internet, and to 
participate in the meeting to the same extent as if they were present in the Board’s Chambers.   
    Members of the public who wish to observe the meeting virtually can do so via the worldwide web at:  

                    https://youtu.be/_7MG4eBuijM  or go to www.countyofkings.com and click on the “Join Meeting” link. 
    Members of the public who wish to comment may submit written comments on any matter within the Board’s subject matter 

jurisdiction, regardless of whether it is on the agenda for Board consideration or action, and those comments will be entered into the 

administrative record of the meeting.  To submit written comments by U.S. Mail or email for inclusion in the meeting record, they 

must be received by the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors no later than 9:00 a.m. on the morning of the noticed meeting.  To submit 

written comments by email, please forward them to  bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us.  To submit such comments by U.S. Mail, please 

forward them to:   Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, County of Kings, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd., Hanford, CA 93230 

 
To comment during the meeting by telephone or the Internet, E-mail the Clerk of the Board at any time before or during the meeting 
at bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us for a phone number, access code and meeting link.   

 

10:00 AM - REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING INSTRUCTIONS – ENGLISH 
To comment during the meeting by telephone or the Internet, E-mail the Clerk of the Board at any time before or during the meeting 
at bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us for a phone number, access code and meeting link.   
If you just wish to only listen to the public hearing you can go to this YouTube link https://youtu.be/_7MG4eBuijM  Through the 
YouTube link you cannot make comments so please see above for instructions to receive meeting link if you wish to make a comment. 
  

10:00 AM - INSTRUCCIONES PARA LA AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA DE REDISTRIBUCIÓN - ESPAÑOL 
Para comentar durante la reunión por teléfono o Internet, envíe un correo electrónico al Secretaria de la Junta en cualquier momento 
antes o durante la reunión a bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us para obtener un número de teléfono, código de acceso y enlace de la 
reunión. 
Si solo desea escuchar la audiencia pública puede ir a este enlace de YouTube-https://youtu.be/bjVHAHsFJPM  A través del enlace de 
YouTube no puede hacer comentarios, por lo tanto, consulte las instrucciones anteriores para recibir el enlace de la reunión si desea 
hacer un comentario. 
 

    
    

http://www.countyofkings.com/
mailto:Catherine.Venturella@co.kings.ca.us
mailto:bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us
mailto:bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us
mailto:bosquestions@co.kings.ca.us
https://youtu.be/bjVHAHsFJPM


Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
July 20, 2021 
Page 2 of 5 

 

    
I.  9:00 AM CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
INVOCATION – Pastor Sylvia Gaston – Koinonia Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  ALL MEMBERS PRESENT 
   
II.  UNSCHEDULED APPEARANCES 

Any person may directly address the Board at this time on any item on the agenda, or on any other 
items of interest to the public, that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Two (2) 
minutes are allowed for each item. 

  Keith Fagundes, District Attorney, gave the Board an update on  the status of current jury trials in 
Kings County. 
 
Paula Massey stated that if the County  plans on events  for Valley Fever Awareness Month in the 
month of August she is available  for assistance. 
 
Sanja Bugay, Human Services Agency, stated that Antoinette Gonzales, Benefit Services Deputy 
Director of Human Services Agency, will be retiring this week after 33 years of service to Kings 
County. 
 
Lupe Villa, Registrar of Voters, gave an update on the upcoming California Governor recall election 
and November election. 
 

   
III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
  A. Report Out of Closed Session on June 22, 2021. 

Larry Spikes, Interim County Administrative Officer stated that the Board by a vote of (JN, DV, 
CP, RF-Aye, RV-Recused) on June 22, 2021, Lee Burdick former County Counsel and the County 
finalized a separation agreement whereby Ms. Burdick agreed to end her employment with 
Kings County on July 13, 2021. As part of this agreement the County agreed to pay her 
$250,000, approximately the equivalent of the remainder of her compensation for the balance 
of her four year term, and an additional $250,000 as a separation payment. 

  B. Approval of the minutes from the July 13, 2021 regular meeting. 
  ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, JN, RV, RF, CP - Aye) 
   
IV.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
  A. Agriculture Department: 
   1. Consider approving the Cooperative Agreement with the California Department of Food and 

Agriculture for the County’s Organic Inspection Program, retroactively effective from July 1, 
2021 to June 30, 2022.[Agmt 21-082] 

  B. Behavioral Health Department: 
   1. Consider approving an Agreement with Kings View for Narcotic Treatment Program 

Services, retroactively effective from December 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023.[Agmt 21-083] 
  C. County Counsel: 
   1. Consider approving the Agreement with Lozano Smith for outside legal services. 

[Agmt 21-084] 
  D. Human Resources: 
   1. Consider approving out-of-state travel for Personnel Technicians Jessica Cervantes and Eva 

Perez to attend the NEOGOV Annual User Conference in Las Vegas, Nevada from October 5-
7, 2021.  

     



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
July 20, 2021 
Page 3 of 5 

 

  CONSENT CALENDA CONTINUEDR 
  E. Human Services Agency: 
   1. Consider approving the Memorandum of Understanding with Valley Regional Counties – 

Mutual Aid Plan Protocol for Post-Disaster Support and Services Accommodation for the 
CalFresh program.[Agmt 21-085] 

  F. Job Training Department: 
   1. a. Consider approving the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Fiscal Year 2021-

2023 Master Subgrant AA211010; and  
    b. Authorize the Director of Economic and Workforce Development to enter into 

Agreements necessary to carry out this Subgrant.[Agmt 21-086] 
  G. Public Health Department: 
   1. Consider approving an Agreement with Kings County Children & Families Commission (First 

5) for staffing and administrative services.[Agmt 21-087] 
  ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, RF, JN, RV, CP - Aye) 
   
V.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
  A. Administration – Larry Spikes 

Waste Management – Bob Henry 
   1. Consider accepting the quarterly report from Chemical Waste Management.  
   Bob Henry was not able to join us, this item will be brought back on July 27, 2021. 
    
  B. Human Resources – Henie Ring 
   1. Consider authorizing the Human Resources Director and designated staff to sign the 

successor Agreement with the Deputy Sheriff’s Association for a term beginning July 1, 2021 
and ending June 30, 2023.[Agmt 21-088] 

  ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, JN, RV, RF, CP - Aye) 
   
  C. Human Services Agency – Sanja Bugay/Antoinette Gonzales 
   1. Consider approving an Agreement with the Kings County Commission on Aging Council to 

provide continued Medi-Cal outreach and assistance for the Medi-Cal Health Enrollment 
Navigators Project, retroactively effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022.[Agmt 21-089] 

  ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, RF, JN, RV, CP - Aye) 
   
  D. Public Health Department – Edward Hill 
   1. Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and 

proximate threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take 
action as deemed necessary. 

     
 Addendum E. Administration – Larry Spikes/Domingo Cruz 
   1. a. Consider approving the Board of State and Community Corrections Construction 

Agreement for the County’s Senate Bill 81 Round Two Juvenile Center Remodel Project; 
and 

    b. Authorize the County Administrative Officer or his/her designee to sign any future 
amendments to the Agreement as required.[Agmt 21-090] 

  ACTION: APPROVED AS PRESENTED  (DV, JN, RV, RF, CP - Aye) 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
July 20, 2021 
Page 4 of 5 

 

VI. 10:00 AM PUBLIC HEARING  
  Administration – Larry Spikes/Kyria Martinez 

County Counsel – Carrie Woolley/Diane Freeman 
   1. Conduct a public hearing for the County’s 2021 Supervisorial redistricting process. 
  Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board stated that the Board received comments from the 

following pesons and the letters will become part of the record: Ignacio Ornelas, Mary Gonzales-
Gomez and Antony Lopez on behalf of Alvaro Preciado. 
Supervisor Pedersen opened the Public Hearing,testimony was received from: Carlos Tafolla, Claire 
Fitiausi, Ron Bates, Lori Pesante, and Cathy Jorgensen and the Public Hearing was closed. 

   
VII.  BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

On their own initiative, Board Members may make a brief announcement or a brief report on their 
own activities.  They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral to staff or take action to have 
staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Gov. Code Section 54954.2a). 
Supervisor Neves stated that he participated in the CalViva Finance meeting and the regional  
authority meeting, attended the American Legion breakfast, toured the Groundwater Sustainability 
aquafer pilot project, and attended the Kings County Homeless Collaborative meeting. 
 
Supervisor Verboon attended  the Groundwater Sustainability aquifer pilot project tour and 
thanked the Stone and Azevedo property owners for allowing the test project. He stated that he 
has been working with Self-Help Enterprises on drought workshops for residents in the outlying 
County who are losing wells and getting flyers out for everyone to have the information. 
 
Supervisor Valle stated that he is working with Assembly member Rudy Salas on  a check 
presentation photo opportunity for the Kettleman City Pedestrian bridge project $2 Million award 
and will advise everyone of the date and time for the event, and stated that he is working with 
Senator Alex Padilla’s office on a request for an additional $2 Million on the Federal side for the 
project. 
 
Supervisor Pedersen stated that he participated in the Kings/Tulare Area Agency on Aging meeting. 

    
   Board Correspondence - None 
   Upcoming Events - Larry Spikes stated that the Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department 100th 

Anniversary will be held on July 24, 2021 from 10:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. at Veteran’s Park in 
Lemoore and this will be a free family event.  He stated that 22 State Veterans groups will hold 
their Enforcement & First Responders Suicide Awareness ride from July 21, 2021 to August 8, 
2021 with a meeting at Hanford Civic Auditorium on July 21, 2021 at 7:30 a.m. 

   Information on Future Agenda Items: Larry Spikes stated that the following items would be on a 
future agenda: Administration – Budget Hearings on  August 17, 2021 and August 18, 2021, Jail 
Medical Contract amendment, American Recovery Plan Act  Study Session on funding projects 
and Impact Fee Public Hearing.  Behavioral Health Department – Agreement for 
Telepsychiatrist and Medical Director with Arieh Whisenhunt, Child Support Department – 
Child Support Awareness Month, Fire Department – Corcoran District Hospital Grant, Human 
Resources – Class and pay for Child Support Assistant, Probation Department – Edward Byrne 
Memorial Justice Assistance Grant application, Agreement with Champions Recovery 
Alternative Programs, Inc. for Residential Substance Use Treatment and Other Rehabilitative 
Services, Public Health Department – COVID-19 update, Sheriff’s Department – MOU with the 
Superior Court of CA for Court Security Services, airplane purchase and sale of surplus 
equipment. 

   
   
   



Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting Action Summary   
July 20, 2021 
Page 5 of 5 

 

VIII.  CLOSED SESSION 
   Significant Exposure to Litigation: 1 Case [Govt. Code Section 54956.9 (d)(2)]  
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  County Administrative Officer 
   Personnel Matter:  [Govt. Code Section 54957] 

Public Employee Appointment:  County Counsel 
   Conference with Labor Negotiator/Meet and Confer: [Govt. Code Section 54957.6] 
   Negotiators:  Larry Spikes, Kyria Martinez, Henie Ring, Che Johnson of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
     Supervisors – CLOCEA 
     Firefighter’s Association 
  REPORT OUT: Carrie Woolley, Assistant County Counsel stated that she did anticipate reportable 

action being taken. 
   
IX.  ADJOURNMENT 
  The next regularly scheduled meeting will be held on Tuesday, July 27, 2021, at 9:00 a.m.   
   

FUTURE MEETINGS AND EVENTS 

 July 27   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 3   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 9   9:00 AM  Board of Equalization Regular Meeting 

 August 10   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

 August 17   9:00 AM  Regular Meeting 

Agenda backup information and any public records provided to the Board after the posting of the agenda will be available for 
the public to review at the Board of Supervisors office, 1400 W. Lacey Blvd, Hanford, for the meeting date listed on this 
agenda. 

 



Badasci, Diane 

From: 
Sent: 

Mary Gonzales Gomez <mary.gonzales-gomez@kingscoe.org> 
Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:38 AM 

To: BOS Questions 
Subject: Public comment on redistricting 

Hi Diane, The following is the comment I wish to present at 10:00 public comment. 

Mary 

Good morning, Board of Supervisors. 

My name is Mary Gonzales-Gomez, I am a resident of Corcoran and I speak today about redistricting in Kings 

County. 

Real concerns have surfaced in our communities in that redistricting may affect changes with our 

current representative Kings County Board Supervisor, Richard Valle. 

His commitment, his hard work and his tenacity has brought about tremendous positive changes within his 

district that have impacted our communities. Supervisor Valle is well connected to the communities of Avenal, the 

community of Kettleman City, the Home Garden community, and the community of Corcoran. 

These rural communities which he currently represents have come to trust and depend on his regular media 

messages, his transparency his visibility throughout his district, and his availability to his constituents. 

To redistrict and relocate this and other Kings County Board Supervisors may create not only a huge disruption but 

destroy the connection between a County Supervisor that has a real connection to his district. 

KINGS COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 
E-MAIL CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: 

This e-mail communication and any attachments, including documents, files , or previous e-mail messages, constitute electronic 
communications within the scope of the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18 U.S.C. 2510 et seq. This e-mail 
communication may contain non-public, confidential or legally privileged information intended for the sole use of the designated 
recipient(s) . The unauthorized and intentional interception, use, copy or disclosure of such information, or attempt to do so, is 
strictly prohibited and may be unlawful under applicable laws. [18 U.S.C. 2511 .J If you have received this e-mail in error, please 
immediately notify the sender by return e-mail and delete the original e-mail from your system. 

1 



Badasci, Diane 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Antony V. Lopez <alopez@cityofavenal.us> 
Tuesday, July 20, 2021 10:21 AM 
Reyes, Aaron; BOS Questions 
'Alvaro Preciado (alva0430@gmail.com)'; 'apreciado@cityofavenal.com' 
Re: Link to today's meeting 

Thank you Aaron, because we are having tech issues and hearing both English and Spanish at the same time, 

Mayor Alvaro Preciado has the following comment he would like read for today's meeting: 

• Quiero pedir formalmente una audencia publica aqui en Avenal par la tarde. Antes de/ voto final 
para darle oportunidad a las residentes de Avenal dar sus comentarios o ideas personalmente. La 
mayoria no va a participar par internet. 

1 

• I want to formally request a public hearing be held here in Avenal in the late afternoon before the final 

vote is made. Please give Avenal residents an opportunity to personally give their comments or ideas 

because most will not participate online. 

From: Reyes, Aaron <Aaron.Reyes@co.kings.ca.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 202110:03 AM 
To: Antony V. Lopez <alopez@cityofavenal.us>; BOS Questions <BOSquestions@co.kings.ca.us> 
Cc: 'Alvaro Preciado (alva0430@gmail.com)' <alva0430@gmail.com>; 'apreciado@cityofavenal.com' 
<apreciado@cityofavenal.com> 
Subject: RE : Link to today's meeting 

Good morning, 
Here is the link: 
https ://cou ntyofkings. webex. com/cou ntyofki ngs/j . php? MTI D=mdbd 1286a3ff 493a69bac 1 e5372eebdb3 

From: Antony V. Lopez <alopez@cityofavenal.us> 
Sent: Tuesday, July 20, 202110:01 AM 
To: BOS Questions <BOSquestions@co.kings.ca.us> 
Cc: 'Alvaro Preciado (alva0430@gmail.com)' <alva0430@gmail.com>; 'apreciado@cityofavenal.com' 
<apreciado@cityofavenal.com> 
Subject: Link to today's meeting 

Good morning, Mayor Preciado is asking for a link to today's meeting/public hearing. 

-Antony V. Lopez, MPA 
City Manager 
City of Avenal 
(559) 386-5782 
www.cityofavenal.com 

1 



Venturella, Catherine 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Catherine, 

Redistricting 
Tuesday, July 20, 2021 8:11 AM 
Venturella, Catherine 
FW: Kings County Redistricting - New submission from Contact Us 

This is the email received from Ignacio Ornelas. 

Kyria 

From: redistricting@co.kings.ca .us <redistricting@co.kings.ca.us> 

Sent: Monday, July 19, 202111:27 AM 
To: Redistricting <redistricting@redistrictkings.com>; allison@tripepismith.com 
Subject: Kings County Redistricting - New submission from Contact Us 

Name 

Ignacio Ornelas 

Email 

ignacio ornelas@my.cuesta.edu 

Message 

Yo quiero que siga igual asi como estamos 

1 

3 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Behavioral Health – Lisa Lewis/UnChong Parry 
 
SUBJECT: AGREEMENT FOR TELEPSYCHIATRIST AND MEDICAL DIRECTOR 

WITH ARIEH WHISENHUNT  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Kings County Behavioral Health (KCBH) is seeking approval of an agreement with Arieh Whisenhunt, 
Doctor of Medicine (Dr. Whisenhunt) to act as the Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) Innovation 
Multiple Organization Shared Telepsychiatry (MOST) Project Psychiatrist and Department Medical 
Director.   

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the Agreement with Arieh Whisenhunt to act as the Kings County Behavioral Health 
Mental Health Services Act Innovation Multiple Organization Shared Telepsychiatry Project 
Psychiatrist and Department Medical Director, retroactively effective from July 1, 2021 to June 
30, 2024. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
There is no impact to the County General Fund.  The agreement amount is $294,000 for each year in 
Fiscal Years 2021-2022, 2022-2023, and 2023-2024, and are paid with MHSA funds.  Expenses under 
this agreement and sufficient revenue for expenses were included in the Department’s Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Recommended Budget in Budget Unit 422200 (Mental Health Services Act). 
 

BACKGROUND: 
MHSA Innovation Plan funding per California Code of Regulations, Title IV, Section 3910(a), may be used in 
one of the following three components: (1) Introduce a mental health practice or approach that is new to the 
overall mental health system, including but not limited to prevention and early intervention; (2) Make a change  
 

(Cont’d) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
AGREEMENT FOR TELEPSYCHIATRIST AND MEDICAL DIRECTOR WITH ARIEH 
WHISENHUNT 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

to an existing practice in the field of mental health including, but not limited to, application to different 
populations; or (3) Apply to the mental health system a  promising community-driven practice or approach that 
has been successful in non-mental health contacts or settings.  

 
The KCBH MHSA Innovation MOST Project was approved by the Board on June 26, 2018 as part of the 2017-
2020 Kings County MHSA Three Year Program and Expenditure Plan.  The Mental Health Services Oversight 
and Accountability Commission (MHSOAC) approved the MHSA Innovation MOST Project in September 
2018.  The KCBH MHSA Innovation MOST Project requires a State Medical Board Licensed Psychiatrist to 
perform Telepsychiatry services for Kings County consumers suffering from Severe Mental Illness (SMI) and 
Severe Emotional Disturbances (SED).  Dr. Whisenhunt was identified via the Kings County Sole Source 
selection process due to his extensive and unique field experience. 
 
Dr. Whisenhunt began providing Telepsychiatry services for Kings County on June 6, 2019 and has been 
providing quality services to the residents of Kings County, as well as serving as the Medical Director, for over 
two years.  Dr. Whisenhunt has been providing community based psychiatric services for over 30 years, and is 
very familiar with the Kings County population. 

 
Dr. Whisenhunt possesses extensive experience delivering quality community based psychiatric care working 
from a Wellness and Recovery model.  The Wellness and Recovery approach to providing Specialty Mental 
Health services is a unique approach recognized by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 
Administration (SAMHSA).  The Wellness and Recovery approach is an important component to the KCBH 
system of care, as indicated in the KCBH Mission Statement, “To promote, support, and invest in the Wellness 
and Recovery of individuals living in the communities of Kings County by creating opportunities to contribute, 
learn, work, and find hope in each day”.  
 
Dr. Whisenhunt will be providing psychiatric services to adults participating in the County’s current programs, 
and any new individuals referred who would qualify for psychiatric services.  His duties will also include 
serving as KCBH’s Medical Director. 
 
Under this agreement, KCBH provides oversight of the program services to comply with Federal, State, and 
County contract guidelines.  Program oversight is also designed to meet countywide needs and State mandates.  
Dr. Whisenhunt will provide quarterly reports on demographic data of all participants, outreach activities, 
training, and maintain all client records in an Electronic Health Records system.  
 
The agreement has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form. 
 

































































 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Probation Department – Kelly M. Vernon 
 
SUBJECT: EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Department of Justice’s 2021 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program 
provides funding to assist various public safety organizations in improving law enforcement programs.   

 
Recommendation: 

a. Authorize the County Administrative Officer and County Counsel to sign the Inter-local 
Agreement between the City of Hanford and the County of Kings to allow Hanford Police 
Department to apply for funding under the Justice Assistance Grant Program;  and  

b. Acknowledge that Probation Department will receive funding in the amount of $10,595 for 
the year 2021. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
There is no fiscal impact to the County General Fund.  For the year 2021, the County of Kings will 
receive $10,595.  This amount will be budgeted in Budget Unit 233000, Juvenile Treatment Center – 
Fed Aid-JAG Grant (233000 – 86023), as a budget change to the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Proposed 
Budget.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
The JAG Program allows public safety organizations to apply for funding to improve public safety functions.  
Each county must designate a law enforcement agency within the county as the lead agency, which will apply 
for this funding.  Hanford Police Department has agreed to be the lead agency.  Hanford Police Department will 
submit the JAG application, complete any other necessary paperwork, and act as the administrator of the grant. 
 

(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

There is a $10,595 available funding to the Kings County Probation Department in the 2021 grant cycle.  
Probation will use these funds to contract with the University of Cincinnati to assist in the design of the local 
program to address the needs of the Secure Track Youth.  This allocation will meet more than half the cost, 
while the remaining costs will be covered with Youthful Offender Block Grant (YOBG) reserves. 
 
The Inter-local agreement has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form. 







 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION: APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

On ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Sheriff's Office – David Robinson 
 
SUBJECT: MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE SUPERIOR COURT OF 

CALIFORNIA FOR COURT SECURITY SERVICES 
 
SUMMARY: 

 
Overview: 
The Kings County Sheriff's Office requests authorization for Sheriff Dave Robinson to sign a 
Memorandum of Understanding and Court Security Plan with the Superior Court of California. 
 
Recommendation: 
Authorize Sheriff Dave Robinson to sign a Memorandum of Understanding and Court Security 
Plan with the Superior Court of California, retroactively effective from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 
2024. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The funding for Security Services is provided directly to the County by the State of California.  The 
County and Sheriff are not obligated to provide services in excess of the amount allocated.  In the event 
costs for services are projected to exceed the funding allocated to the County, the Sheriff and Court 
agree to discuss the agreement for potential ways to reduce costs, which may include amending the 
agreement. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
Your Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and Court Security Plan on May 14, 2019 for 
services from July 1, 2019 through June 30, 2021.  The new MOU will be effective from July 1, 2021 to June 
30, 2024 unless terminated as outlined in the MOU.   
 

(Cont'd) 
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 
FOR COURT SECURITY SERVICES 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

The Sheriff will continue to provide security services, as outlined in the MOU, to the Superior Court of 
California, Hanford Courthouse, located at 1640 Kings County Drive.  The Court will also provide funding, not 
to exceed $10,000 to the Sheriff to fund an extra help position for the provision of a bailiff through June 30, 
2024. 
 
The MOU has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form. 
 

 
 





































 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:         OTHER: ___   
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY:   Administration – Larry Spikes/Matthew Boyett 
   

 
SUBJECT: CAPITAL PROJECT MANAGER 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
On May 21, 2021, the County published a Request for Qualification (RFQ) for a capital project manager 
to assist Administration in managing and monitoring various capital projects undertaken by the County. 
The County received three submittals as a result of the RFQ: Vanir Construction Management 
Incorporated (Vanir), Kitchell, and 4Creeks Incorporated (4Creeks). After the RFQ was closed and a 
scoring committee scored and ranked the submitters. Vanir was selected as the preliminary awardee and 
given notice of intent to award, pending Board approval. The service contract is being brought forward 
for consideration and formal adoption.       

 
Recommendation: 
Approve the agreement with Vanir Construction Management Incorporated for capital project 
management services. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
Services under this agreement will be billed at $195 per hour, up to a total amount not to exceed 
$135,000. This agreement will be paid through Budget Unit 700000 (Building Projects), which was 
included in the Fiscal Year (FY) 21/22 Recommended Budget.  
 

BACKGROUND: 
The County is seeking assistance in managing various capital projects that are currently in the early stages of 
development. Specifically, the County will be involved in the development and construction of a new County-
operated fire station that will be located on the Tachi-Yokut reservation in Lemoore (The Tachi-Yokut Fire 
Station), the renovation of the Fire Department’s existing Armona fire station to accommodate the addition of a 
ladder truck, and the renovation of the County libraries in Lemoore and Avenal. 
 

(Cont’d) 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 



Agenda Item 
CAPITAL PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

To ensure these projects were managed and administered appropriately, Administration published an RFQ for a 
capital project manager. The RFQ was published on May 21, 2021, and was closed on June 11, 2021. 
Administration received three submittals; Vanir, Kitchell, and 4Creeks. A scoring team comprised of staff from 
Administration, the County Library, the Fire Department, and Public Works analyzed and rated each submittal. 
From the scoring team’s analysis, Administration made a determination that Vanir would be the most qualified 
to assist the County in effectively managing the capital projects. Vanir has a long history and experience with 
managing and constructing large-scale public facilities throughout the Central Valley. More specifically, Vanir 
has delivered various construction and construction management services for Clovis Fire Station Number 6, 
Tulare County Public Library, and Visalia Fire Station Number 56. In addition to these facilities, Vanir has past  
experience in delivering construction and construction management services for the City of Los Banos Police 
Department, the San Luis Obispo County Sheriff and Cal-Fire  Dispatch Facility, a Learning Resource Center in 
Delano, California, and a jail expansion project in San Benito County. Specifically in Kings County, Vanir was 
the construction management company who assisted with the Assembly Bill (AB) 900 Phase II and III Jail 
Expansion projects for the Sheriff’s Department, and will be providing construction management services for 
the Senate Bill (SB) 81 Round Two Juvenile Center Remodel Project.  
 
Vanir has identified Roy Magdaleno as the specified Capital Project Manager to assist the County in carrying 
out the various projects outlined above. Roy has over 17 years experience in construction management, with 
relevant project experience in building a new police station for the City of Selma, an AB 900 Phase II Jail 
Expansion project for the County of San Benito, and AB 900 Jail Expansion Phase II, and III projects for Kings 
County.       
 
The Capital Project Manager will work part-time to assist the County in overseeing and managing the capital 
projects outlined above.  On the County’s behalf, the Capital Project Manager will provide frequent 
communication and instruction to various contractors working on an applicable project. The role of the Capital 
Project Manager will be to coordinate and manage, as permitted in a part-time role, all aspects of capital projects 
through completion. 
 
Capital project management services provided by Vanir will be as follows:  

 
Planning  
Oversee project conceptualization, site selection and preparation, feasibility studies, milestone creation, budget 
and budget control development, project master scheduling, and development of high-level project monitoring 
indicators and evaluation measures to ensure the goals of a project are accomplished within strict time and 
resource constraints. Identify key stakeholders that will receive frequent progress reports by others and updates 
throughout the life of a project.  
 
Project Execution  
Through effective project and construction management skills and as much as can be expected on a part-time 
basis, help to oversee that projects deliver on applicable timelines, budget constraints, and milestones. Conduct 
request for proposal processes as needed for project execution, writing the request, and assisting in selection of 
the awardee. Help the County determine access to utilities as needed and coordinate connections accordingly. 



Agenda Item 
CAPITAL PROJECT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
July 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Conduct periodic project team meetings as required to maintain project delivery schedules. Oversee the closeout 
and warranty of projects. 
 
Project Monitoring  
Review and oversee project progress through strategies and methodologies developed during project planning. 
Help keep projects on track and meet time constraints, and address any deficiencies discovered during project 
monitoring. Oversee and monitor design consultants, contractors, and their deliverables.  
 
Project Closeout  
Assist in overseeing that projects meet all requirements, including applicable reports and documentation to other 
agencies and entities in a timely manner according to project requirements. Track trade warranty and 
maintenance periods after construction, and help oversee that subcontractors properly closeout and finalize 
various aspects of each project.  

 
Communication  
Act as the liaison between the County and project contractors. Help handle disputes that arise between the 
County and contractors. Meet with contractors to resolve disputes. Lead, interface, and coordinate with various 
workers and other project professionals and permitting authorities on technical aspects of a project. Provide the 
County with frequent communication and reports on the status of active projects; including status on budget, 
milestones, requirements, and timelines (frequency can vary depending on the complexity and scope of the 
project). 
 
Documentation Review and Examination 
Review various project documents submitted to the County and provide timely recommendations based on 
expert experience and suggest needed action. Approve and authorize change orders during the course of a 
project. Coordinate with County staff and other stakeholders as needed. Help prepare documents needing to go 
before the Board for approval. Help produce and submit applicable state and federal reports as needed to satisfy 
project requirements.   
 
This agreement has been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form.  































 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:             OTHER:       x 
 

 

 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on _________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Larry Spikes 
Chemical Waste Management – Bob Henry 
 

 
SUBJECT: KETTLEMAN HILLS WASTE FACILITY QUARTERLY REPORT 

 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
Quarterly report of facility activities at the Kettleman Hills Hazardous Waste Facility.  The report will be 
given by representatives from Chemical Waste Management, the company that operates the facility.  
 
Recommendation: 
Accept the quarterly report from Chemical Waste Management.  
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
On December 22, 2009, the Kings County Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 09-073, which 
authorized issuing Conditional Use Permit No. 05-10 for Chemical Waste Management, Incorporated (CWM) 
to operate the Kettleman Hills Hazardous Waste Facility.  As part of the conditions of approval as cited in 
condition #B-4 of Resolution No. 09-073, “That the General Manager of the CWM Kettleman Hills Facility 
shall give quarterly rather than monthly reports to the Board of Supervisors, in person, concerning the 
monitoring program and any and all other work or activity at the site, including any and all information sent to 
all regulatory agencies.”  In accordance with these provisions, the General Manager will attend the meeting 
updating your Board on the previous quarter’s activities.  The Board may, from time to time, require special 
reports concerning specific items or activities about which they are concerned in addition to the regular update. 
 
 

 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Fire Department – William Lynch/Joshua Cunningham 
 
SUBJECT: CORCORAN DISTRICT HOSPITAL GRANT 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
The Kings County Fire Department applied for a grant offered by the Corcoran District Hospital Board 
of Trustees for two Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression Systems, accessories, and a four-year service contract 
from the Corcoran District Hospital Board of Trustees. The Fire Department’s project has been awarded 
and the department is requesting approval to accept the chest compression systems from the Corcoran 
District Hospital Board of Trustees.  The Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression Systems will assist the 
department in providing life saving cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) to the City of Corcoran 
residents.  

 
Recommendation: 
Accept the two Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression Systems from the Corcoran District Hospital Board 
of Trustees to assist in providing life saving cardiopulmonary resuscitation to the City of 
Corcoran residents. 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
There is no current impact to the County General Fund or the Fire Fund.  The Corcoran District Hospital 
Board of Trustees will purchase the two Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression Systems, accessory equipment, 
and a four year service contract for $43,673 from Stryker Medical.  Once the service contract meets the 
expiration date, the Fire Department will fund the maintenance and continue to utilize the equipment.  
The annual maintenance costs are estimated at $1,400 per system.   

 
 

(Cont’d) 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 
 



Agenda Item 
CORCORAN DISTRICT HOSPITAL GRANT  
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

BACKGROUND: 
The Corcoran District Hospital Board of Trustees is offering grants for projects that improve the health of the 
City of Corcoran residents.  The Fire Department submitted a grant project for consideration to the Corcoran 
District Hospital Board of Trustees and the project was awarded for or two Lucas 3.1 Chest Compression 
Systems, accessories, and a four-year service contract, which will provide annual onsite maintenance for the 
chest compression systems.  The Corcoran District Hospital Board of Trustees will expend the funds for the 
project and give the equipment to the Fire Department.  The chest compression systems will aid in the 
department’s mission to save lives delivering life saving cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).  The machine is 
more capable of delivering effective CPR, than a human responder using their hands, because the machine is 
more consistent with compressions, which can provide a higher quality of service in almost every circumstance.  
One chest compression system will be assigned to Corcoran Fire Station #11, and the second chest compression 
system will be assigned to the South Hanford Fire Station #4 who regularly responds to emergencies in the 
Corcoran Hospital District.  



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION: APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

On ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Sheriff's Office – David Robinson 
 
SUBJECT: AIRPLANE PURCHASE OPTION AND DECLARATION OF SURPLUS 

EQUIPMENT 
 
SUMMARY: 

 
Overview: 
The King's County Sheriff's Office is seeking authorization to pay the remaining lease to purchase the 
Flight Design Composite Technology Law Enforcement (CTLE) fixed wing law enforcement aircraft, 
declare it as surplus, and authorize placing it for sale by County Purchasing 
 
Recommendation: 

a. Authorize purchase of the Composite Technology Law Enforcement fixed wing law 
enforcement aircraft by paying the remaining lease balance;  

b. Declare the Composite Technology Law Enforcement aircraft and its included equipment 
as surplus property;  

c. Authorize the sale as surplus equipment at public auction; and 
d. Adopt the budget change.  (4/5 vote required) 

 
Fiscal Impact: 
The remaining balance of the CTLE aircraft is estimated at $122,079.  Total cost to pay the remaining 
balance on the aircraft will be transferred from the Sheriff Contingencies Fund and paid from the 
Sheriff’s Operations Capital Assets Budget, Budget unit 222000, Account number 94004.   
 

BACKGROUND: 
In 2014, the Kings County Sheriff’s Office purchased a new, light sport, CTLE, two seat, fixed wing airplane. 
The airplane was purchased “turn key,” and was delivered with law enforcement related equipment already 
installed. 

(Cont’d) 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
AIRPLANE PURCHASE OPTION AND DECLARATION OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

The CTLE airplane is considered a light sport aircraft (LSA), meaning it is limited in its payload carrying 
capacity.  The airplane cannot be operated weighing more than 3,500 pounds.  It also only has two seats, so no 
other occupants besides the pilot and Tactical Flight Officer can occupy the aircraft.   
 
Since its inception, the Air Support Unit (ASU) has simply out grown the current fixed wing aircraft, and have 
expanded beyond the airplane’s capabilities.  The surveillance camera (which is one of the main components of 
the aircraft) has reached its end of life, and parts for the camera system are no longer being produced.  
Additionally, more technological advanced camera systems cannot be installed on the aircraft due to weight 
limitations, which can not be avoided.  The CTLE airplane is equipped with an entry level camera system and 
law enforcement equipment.  More advanced camera systems and law enforcement equipment have a much 
more significant weight and simply cannot be supported by the current airplane.  In addition, due to the 
limitations of the current camera system, the pilots must operate the aircraft at approximately 1,500 feet above 
the ground.  Although this is a safe altitude, the pilots would prefer flying at much higher altitudes in the event 
an emergency situation arises, as there are more options available to pilots to handle emergencies and land the 
aircraft safely when flying at a higher altitude. 
 
The current airplane only has approximately 500 hours of engine time remaining before the engine will need to 
be replaced per the manufacturer’s recommendations.  The cost of a new camera system can easily exceed 
$1,000,000 and the cost of a new engine can exceed $25,000.  
 
The CTLE is made in Germany, and it is very difficult to purchase parts for the airplane.  Currently, there are 
only about two companies in the United States that sell CTLE parts including basic parts, such as the smallest  
nuts and bolts.  
 
At the November 3, 2020 Board meeting, the Board authorized the purchase of a Cessna 206 aircraft as a 
replacement to the CTLE.  This aircraft has been purchased and now being utilized.  Upon the purchase of the 
new aircraft, the Kings County Sheriff’s Office agreed to return to the Board with a request under Section 25363 
of the Government Code to sell the CTLE airplane to the highest bidder at a public auction, and convey the 
proceeds of that sale to the County Treasury.  
 
Section 13 “Option to Purchase” of the California Abatement Lease-Purchase Agreement between the County of 
Kings and Government Capital Corporation provides Kings County with the option to purchase the property 
pursuant to the Option to Purchase.  
 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:            OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Larry Spikes/Domingo Cruz  
Public Works Department – Dominic Tyburski  
 

 
SUBJECT: SENATE BILL 81 ROUND TWO JUVENILE CENTER REMODEL PROJECT – 

CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENTS 
 
SUMMARY:      

 
Overview:   
On May 25, 2021, your Board awarded the bid for the County’s Senate Bill 81 Round Two Juvenile 
Center Remodel Project (“the SB 81 Project”) to the apparent lowest bidder, Bowe Contractors, Inc.   
The State Department of Finance has approved the contract award on July 23, 2021, and a construction 
agreement approved by your Board is now needed to move the project forward. 
 
Recommendation:   

a. Award the Senate Bill 81 Project’s Notice to Proceed to Bowe Contractors Inc.;  
b. Approve the Construction Agreement;  
c. Authorize the Public Works Director to approve change orders up to ten percent; and 
d. Approve the Agreement Amendment number two for Vanir Construction Management, 

Inc. for additional program management services during the construction phase.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  
The total cost of the SB 81 Project is $20,111,754, which is included in the Recommended Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2021-2022 Budget, Budget Unit 700003 (KC SB 81 Project), Account 94105 (SB 81 Project).  The 
State will provide $9,600,000 for the Project, and the County is providing $10,511,754 in Cash Match.  
The Cash Match is provided by the following sources: 
 
 

 (Cont’d) 
 

 _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230 (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 



Agenda Item 
SENATE BILL 81 ROUND TWO JUVENILE CENTER REMODEL PROJECT – 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENTS  
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Approved Match Dollars: 
• Capital Outlay Funds     $3,972,473 
• Mental Health Services Act Capital funds  $600,000 
• Public Protection Impact Fees   $3,718,340 
• Youthful Offender Block Grant Reserves   $2,020,941 
• Juvenile Re-entry Grant    $200,000 

 
Vanir Construction Management, Inc. (Vanir)’s agreement amendment number two will increase the 
amount from $492,420 to a total amount of $699,420, a $207,000 increase, which is also included in the 
Recommended FY 2021-2022 Budget. 
 

BACKGROUND:   
On June 15, 2021, your Board adopted the Senate Bill 81 (“SB 81”) Round Two Juvenile Center Remodel 
Project budget resolution in order to proceed with construction financing, which assured the State Public Works 
Board (“SPWB”) and the State Department of Finance that the funding source(s) are lawfully available for the 
purposes of funding the Project, and that the County covenants to appropriate funds for the purpose of the 
Project. 
 
The SB-81 Project consists of remodel to and an expansion of the existing County’s Branch Jail facility, which 
will build a new Juvenile Center and Juvenile Day Reporting Center. The remodel and new construction 
includes housing, classrooms, program space, office space, and a day reporting center.  The project includes 32- 
beds, classroom space, medical and programming space, a booking and intake control room, outdoor recreation, 
warming kitchen, and yard areas.   
 
The project also includes, but is not limited to, electrical; plumbing; mechanical; heating, ventilation, and air 
conditioning; security; and fire protection systems, and all other necessary appurtenances.  This will enable the 
facility to be better equipped to provide services to the entire juvenile population.  The agreement requires the 
work to be completed within 15 months, or approximately 456 calendar days.  Estimated start of construction is 
July 27, 2021, and the estimated completion date is October 20, 2022.  It is also anticipated that the occupancy 
date is January 18, 2023. 
 
The Board entered into Agreement 15-058 on June 23, 2015 with Vanir Construction Management, Inc. (Vanir) 
to provide construction management and other services for the County’s Juvenile Center Project, as funded 
under SB 81.  The first Amendment Agreement, 15.058.1, was approved on July 2, 2019 to conduct a 
construction cost estimation services.  This was needed in order to have an appropriate understanding of what 
the project costs was during that time period in the construction market.  The updated cost re-estimation allowed 
the County to make necessary adjustments to the project by conducting a value engineering activity to stay 
within the allotted budget. 
 
As the Juvenile Center project progresses, the project has met unexpected delays through the State’s review and 
approval process.  Due to this delay, the projection for their original proposal have increased since their original 



Agenda Item 
SENATE BILL 81 ROUND TWO JUVENILE CENTER REMODEL PROJECT – 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENTS  
July 27, 2021 
Page 3 of 3 
 

 

proposal submission in 2015 therefore, requiring additional program management services during the 
construction phase. 
 
Staff requests that your Board approve the construction agreement with Bowe Contractors Inc. and Vanir’s 
agreement amendment number two in order to move the project forward to construction phase.   
 
The Agreements have been reviewed and approved by County Counsel as to form. 



1 

 

Agreement No. 15-058.2 
 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 
COUNTY OF KINGS AND VANIR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INC. 

FOR CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND OTHER SERVICES RELATED 
TO THE SB 81 JUVENILE CENTER REMODEL PROJECT 

 
 
 This second amendment to that Agreement commencing on June 23, 2015, 
(“Second Amendment”) is made on this 27th day of July, 2021, by and between the 
County of Kings (“County”) and Vanir Construction Management, Inc. (“Contractor”) 
upon the following terms and conditions: 
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, the County and Contractor entered into that Agreement commencing 
on June 23, 2015, for construction management and other services related to the SB 81 
Juvenile Center Remodel Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, as set forth in Section 4.2, the parties may modify the Agreement by 
a written, executed document; and 
 

WHEREAS, the parties intend to modify the Agreement to increase the amount of 
compensation to Consultant due to costs incurred because of project delays.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1. Consultant shall be paid an additional $207,000.00 to compensate Consultant in 

full for any and all additional services and costs incurred because of project 
delays.  

 
2. The recitals are an integral part of this Second Amendment and are incorporated 

herein. 
 
3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Second Amendment to 
Agreement to be executed on the day and year as provided above.   
 
 
County of Kings      Vanir Construction Management, Inc.  
 
 
By:        By:       
 Craig Pedersen, Chairman 
 Board of Supervisors 
 County of Kings 
 
      
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
Carrie R. Woolley, Interim County Counsel 
 
 
______________________________________  
  
 



SECTION 00 52 13 
CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 

for 
Kings County Juvenile Center Remodel Project SB 81 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ___ day of July , 2021, by and between
the County of Kings, hereinafter referred to as "Owner," and Bowe Contractors, Inc., hereinafter 
referred to as "Contractor." 

That the parties hereto, for and in consideration of the covenants, promises, and agreements to 
be made, kept, and performed as hereinafter set forth, do agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 
THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

The complete Agreement between Owner and Contractor consists of the following Contract 
Documents, which are incorporated herein by reference as though fully set forth, except for 
modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, and enumerated as follows: 

1.1. This Construction Agreement. 

1.2 The General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions, which contain the defined terms 
common to all Contract Documents and to this Agreement, specifically. 

1.3 The Plans and Specifications, as approved by the Kings County Board of Supervisors and 
amended by addenda, if any. 

1.4 The Addenda, if any, as follows: 

Number 

1 
2 
3 
4 
5 
6 
7 
8 

Date 
11/13/2020 
2/1/2021 
2/12/2021 
2/12/2021 
2/12/2021 
3/15/2021 
3/17/2021 
4/19/2021 

ARTICLE 2 
THE WORK 

Contractor agrees to furnish at his or her own cost and expense, all tools, equipment, 
apparatus, labor, materials, mechanical workmanship, transportation, and services necessary to 
complete the construction of the Kings County Juvenile Center Remodel Project SB 81, 

in strict accordance with the Contract Documents. All Work shall be completed in a good and 
workmanlike manner. 

Rev. 07/2021 CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT 00 52 13 - 1 of 4 

27th









 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED:         OTHER: ___   
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk of the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY:    Department of Public Health – Edward Hill 
   

 
SUBJECT: NOVEL CORONAVIRUS 2019 COUNTY UPDATE 
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview: 
On March 4, 2020, the Governor of California proclaimed a State of Emergency throughout California 
because of the increase in cases reported of the novel coronavirus, a disease now known as COVID-19. 
The President of the United States likewise declared a national emergency because of the COVID-19 
outbreak on March 13, 2020.  On March 17, 2020, the Board proclaimed a local emergency in Kings 
County due to the imminent and proximate threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the 
County of Kings.   

 
Recommendation: 
Receive an update on the local emergency in Kings County due to the imminent and proximate 
threat of exposure of COVID-19 on the residents of the County of Kings and take action as 
deemed necessary. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
The County is tracking costs and revenue losses related to the emergency. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
A Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) was first detected in Wuhan City, Hubei Province, China, in December 
2019.  The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) considers the virus to be a very serious public 
health threat.  The exact modes of transmission, the factors facilitating human-to-human transmission, the extent 
of asymptomatic viral shedding, the groups most at risk of serious illness, the attack rate, and the case fatality 
rate all remain active areas of investigation. The CDC believes at this time that symptoms appear two to 
fourteen days after exposure. Currently, there are vaccines for antiviral treatment of COVID-19. County staff 
has been working diligently to assess and provide resources and information to the community regarding 
COVID-19.  An update will be provided to the Board on County related activities and response.  

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 



 ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................   
 
BOARD ACTION : APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED: _________ OTHER: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

I hereby certify that the above order was passed and adopted 

on ________________________, 2021. 

CATHERINE VENTURELLA, Clerk to the Board 

By                                                    , Deputy. 
 

 
 

SUBMITTED BY: Administration – Larry Spikes/Kyria Martinez 
County Counsel – Carrie Woolley/Diane Freeman 

 
SUBJECT: SECOND REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING  
 
SUMMARY: 
 

Overview:  
The County is required as part of its 2021 redistricting process to hold a minimum of four public 
hearings to engage the public in its redistricting process.  The County held its first public hearing on July 
20, 2021.  The County will hold a second public hearing on July 27, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.  

 
Recommendation: 
Conduct the County’s second public hearing for the County’s 2021 supervisorial redistricting 
process. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
None.   

 
BACKGROUND: 
A minimum of four (4) public hearings are required as part of the County’s redistricting process. The County 
held its first public hearing on July 20, 2021.  The County will hold a second public hearing on July 27, 2021 to 
further introduce and facilitate discussion on: (1) the redistricting process with the planned timeline for public 
hearings; (2) the rules and goals governing the redistricting process; (3) how to define neighborhoods; (4) how 
to define communities of interest; and (5) the options available for public mapping and map review.  The 
County will provide at the hearing live Spanish language translation. 
 

(Cont’d) 
 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________   

  

COUNTY OF KINGS 
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

GOVERNMENT CENTER HANFORD, CALIFORNIA 93230  (559) 852-2362 
Catherine Venturella, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM 
July 27, 2021 

 



Agenda Item 
SECOND REDISTRICTING PUBLIC HEARING  
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Members of the community have been encouraged to participate. Notice of today’s Public hearing was 
published on the County’s website www.RedistrictKings.com at least five (5) days in advance.  It has 
additionally been promoted online through social media, as well as with a flyer that was both posted online and 
distributed to local community groups and members via email.  Flyers were also displayed on County facility 
counters. Public hearing notices were also published in the Hanford Sentinel July 24, 2021. Upon conclusion of 
the hearing, the County will make available online recordings or written summaries of the public hearing.   
 

 



7/23/2021

1

County of Kings
Introduction to Redistricting

July 27, 2021 Dr. Jeff Tilton, Senior Consultant
National Demographics Corporation

Redistricting Process

2

Step Description

Initial Hearings
July 20, July 27, August 31

10:00 a.m.

• Held prior to release of draft maps
• Educate and to solicit input on the communities in the Districts

Census Data:
Mid/Late August

• Census Bureau releases official 2020 Census population data.

California Data:
Early October 2021

• California Statewide Database releases California’s official ‘prisoner-adjusted’ 
2020 redistricting data.

Draft Map Hearing
November 3

6:30 p.m.

• Discuss and revise the draft maps
• Discuss the election sequence
• Draft maps due: October 20, 5 p.m.
• Draft maps posted to website by October 27, 5 p.m.

Draft Map Hearing
December 7
10:00 a.m.

• Discuss and select a map
• Discuss and determine the election sequence; first reading of ordinance
• Draft maps due: November 22, 5 p.m.
• Draft maps posted to website by November 29, 5 p.m.

Map Adoption
December 14

10:00 a.m.

• Final map adopted via second reading of ordinance



7/23/2021

2

Equal Population
Federal Voting Rights Act
No Racial Gerrymandering

1. Federal Laws
2. California Criteria for 

Counties
1. Geographically contiguous

2. Undivided neighborhoods 
and “communities of interest” 
(Socio-economic geographic areas that 
should be kept together)

3. Cities and CDP’s

4. Easily identifiable boundaries

5. Compact
(Do not bypass one group of people to 
get to a more distant group of people)

Prohibited:

“Shall not favor or discriminate against 
a political party.”

Redistricting Rules and Goals

3July 27, 2021

Defining Neighborhoods

1st Question: what is your neighborhood?

2nd Question: what are its geographic boundaries?

Examples of physical features defining a neighborhood boundary:

 Natural neighborhood dividing lines, such as highway or major 
roads, rivers, canals and/or hills

 Areas around parks or schools

 Other neighborhood landmarks

In the absence of public testimony, planning records and other similar 
documents may provide definition.

4July 27, 2021



7/23/2021

3

Beyond Neighborhoods:
Defining Communities of Interest

1st Question: what defines your community?

 Geographic Area, plus

 Shared issue or characteristic

 Shared social or economic interest

 Impacted by county policies

 Tell us “your community’s story”

2nd Question: Would this community benefit from being “included within a 
single district for purposes of its effective and fair representation”? 

 Or would it benefit more from having multiple representatives?

Definitions of Communities of Interest may not include relationships 
with political parties, incumbents, or political candidates.

5July 27, 2021

Possible Neighborhoods / Communities

July 27, 2021 6



7/23/2021

4

Public Mapping and Map Review Tools

 Different tools for different purposes

 Different tools for different levels of technical skill and interest

 Simple “review draft maps” tool

 Easy-to-use “Draw your neighborhood” tool

 Paper- and Excel-based simple “Draw a draft map” tools

 Powerful, data-rich “Draw a draft map” tool

Whether you use the powerful (but complicated) online mapping tool, 
Excel, the paper kit, or just draw on a napkin, we welcome your maps!

7July 27, 2021

Simple Map Review Tool

Online Interactive Review Map

 ESRI’s “ArcGIS Online” – similar to Google Maps in ease of use

 Used to review, analyze and compare maps, not to create them

 Includes overlays of “community of interest”  and other Story Map data

 Sample map from Lake Forest

8July 27, 2021



7/23/2021

5

Simple Map Drawing Tool

Paper “Public Participation Kit”

 For those without internet access 
or who prefer paper

 Total Population Counts only –
no demographic numbers

 Geographic units would be tracts, 
CDP’s and smaller cities

Simple Map Drawing Tool + Excel Supplement

“Public Participation Kit”

 For those who know Excel and 
do not wish to use online tools

 Adds CVAP data

 Excel does the math

 Geographic units would be 
tracts, CDP’s and smaller cities



7/23/2021

6

DistrictR

“Draw Your Community of Interest” focus

 DistrictR.org

 Also includes simple district-mapping tool; Only available in English

 Similar external options: Representable.org, DrawMyCACommunity.org

11July 27, 2021

Caliper’s “Maptitude Online Redistricting”

Full Database, Powerful Online Mapping Tool

 Powerful, common, data-rich online tool

 Six language options: English, Spanish, Portuguese, Vietnamese, Mandarin 
and Korean

 Quick Start Guide

12July 27, 2021



7/23/2021

7

Share Your Thoughts

July 27, 2021

Website
www.RedistrictKings.com

Phone
559.852.2445

Email
redistricting@co.kings.ca.us

13

Stay Connected

July 27, 2021

Website

www.RedistrictKings.com

Instagram

instagram.com/RedistrictKings

Facebook

facebook.com/RedistrictKings

Twitter

twitter.com/RedistrictKings

14



7/23/2021

8

Public Hearing & Discussion

15

 What is your neighborhood and what are its boundaries?

 What other notable areas are in the County and its Cities, and what 
are their boundaries?

 Any questions about the mapping tools?

SECOND PUBLIC HEARING (August 31, 2021)
Discussion, then Action:
Vote on areas that meet each AB 849 definition: 

■ “neighborhoods” 
■ “communities of interest . . . that should be included within a single district for 

purposes of its effective and fair representation.”

July 27, 2021



7/23/2021

1

Condado de Kings
Introducción a la Redistribución de Distritos

27 de julio de 2021 Dr. Jeff Tilton, Consultor Sénior
National Demographics Corporation

Proceso de Redistribución de Distritos

2

Paso Descripción

Dos audiencias inciales
20 de julio, 27 de julio & 

31 de agosto
10:00 a.m.

• Organizado antes de la publicación de los borradores de mapas
• Educar y solicitar información sobre las comunidades de los distritos.

Dato de Censo:
Mediados/finales de 

agosto

• La Oficina del Censo publica datos oficiales de población del Censo 2020.

Datos de California:
Principios de octubre de 

2021

• La base de datos estatal de California publica los datos oficiales de redistribución
de distritos de 2020 "ajustados por prisioneros" de California.

Audiencia del borrador
del mapa

3 de noviembre
6:30 p.m.

• Discutir y revisar los borradores de mapas
• Discutir la secuencia de las elecciones
• Fecha límite de los borradores de mapas: 20 de octubre a las 5 p.m.
• Borradores de mapas publicados en el sitio web antes del 27 de octubre a las 5 

p.m.

Audiencia del borrador
del mapa

7 de diciembre
10:00 a.m.

• Discutir y seleccionar un mapa
• Discutir y determinar la secuencia de elecciones; primera lectura de la ordenanza
• Fecha límite de los borradores de mapas: 22 de noviembre a las 5 p.m.
• Borradores de mapas publicados en el sitio web antes del 29 de noviembre a las 

5 p.m.



7/23/2021

2

Igualdad de Población

Ley Federal de Derechos 
Electorales

Sin la manipulación racial 
de distritos injustos
electorales

1. Leyes Federales
2. Criterios de California para 

Condados
1. Geográficamente contiguo
2. Vecindario indivisos y 
"comunidades de interés"
(Áreas geográficas socioeconómicas
que deben mantenerse juntas)

3. Ciudades y los CDP

4. Límites fácilmente
identificables

5. Compacto
(No omita un grupo de personas para 
llegar a un grupo de personas más
distante)

Prohibido:

“No favorecerá ni discriminará a un 
partido político.”

Reglas y Metas de Redistribución de Distritos

320 de julio de 2021

Definición de Vecindario

Primera Pregunta: ¿cuál es tu vecindario?
Segunda Pregunta: ¿cuáles son sus límites geográficos?

Ejemplos de entidades físicas que definen un límite de un vecindario:

 Líneas divisorias naturales del vecindario, como carreteras o 
carreteras principales, ríos, canales y colinas

 Áreas alrededor de parques o escuelas

 Otros puntos de referencia del vecindario

En ausencia de testimonio público, los registros de planificación y 
otros documentos similares pueden proporcionar definición.

420 de julio de 2021



7/23/2021

3

Más Allá de los Vecindarios
Definiendo Comunidades de Interés

Primera Pregunta: ¿qué define a tu comunidad?

 Área geográfica

 Problema o característica compartida

 Interés social o económico compartido

 Impactado por las políticas del condado

 Dinos "la historia de tu comunidad”

Segunda Pregunta: ¿Se beneficiaría esta comunidad de ser "incluida dentro 
de un solo distrito con el propósito de su representación efectiva y justa"? 

 ¿O se beneficiaría más tener múltiples representantes?

Las definiciones de Comunidades de Interés no pueden incluir
relaciones con partidos políticos, titulares o candidatos políticos.

520 de julio de 2021

Posibles Vecindarios / Comunidades

20 de julio de 2021 6



7/23/2021

4

Herramientas de mapeo público y revisión de 
mapas

 Diferentes herramientas para diferentes propósitos

 Diferentes herramientas para diferentes niveles de habilidad técnica
e interés.

 Herramienta fácil para "revisar borradores de mapas”

 Herramienta fácil de usar "Dibuja tu vecindario”

 Herramientas fáciles para "Dibujar un borrador de mapa" basadas en
papel y Excel

 Herramienta poderosa y rica en datos "Dibujar un mapa preliminar"

Ya sea que use la poderosa (pero complicada) herramienta de mapas
en línea, Excel, el kit de papel o simplemente dibuje en una servilleta, 

¡le damos la bienvenida a sus mapas!

720 de julio de 2021

Herramienta de Revisión de Mapas Fácil

Mapa de revisión interactivo en línea

 "ArcGIS Online" de ESRI - similar a Google Maps en facilidad de uso

 Se utiliza para revisar, analizar y comparar mapas, no para crearlos.

 Incluye superposiciones de "comunidad de interés" y otros datos de 
Story Map

 Mapa de muestra de Lake Forest

820 de julio de 2021



7/23/2021

5

Herramienta de Dibujo de Mapa Fácil

Documento "Kit de participación
pública”
Para aquellos no tienen acceso a el 
internet o prefieren el papel

 Solo recuentos de población total 
– sin números demográficas

 Las unidades geográficas serían
zonas, CDP y ciudades más
pequeñas.

Herramienta de Dibujo de Mapa Fácil + 
Suplemento de Excel

"Kit de Participación Pública"

 Para aquellos que conocen
Excel y no desean utilizar
herramientas en línea

 Agrega datos de CVAP

 Excel hace las matemáticas

 Las unidades geográficas serían
zonas, CDP y ciudades más
pequeñas.



7/23/2021

6

DistrictR

Enfoque "Dibuje su comunidad de interés”

 También incluye una herramienta fácil de mapeo de distritos

 Solo disponible en ingles

 Opciones externas similares: Representable.org, DrawMyCACommunity.org

1120 de julio de 2021

"Redistribución de Distritos en Línea de 
Maptitude" de Caliper

Base de Datos Completa, Poderosa Herramienta de Mapeo en Línea

 Herramienta en línea poderosa, común y rica en datos

 Seis opciones de idioma: inglés, español, portugués, vietnamita, mandarín
y coreano

 Guía de inicio rápido

1220 de julio de 2021



7/23/2021

7

Comparte Sus Pensamientos

20 de julio de 2021

Sitio Web
www.RedistrictKings.com

Teléfono
559.852.2445

Correo Electrónico
redistricting@co.kings.ca.us

13

Mantente Conectado

20 de julio de 2021

Sitio Web

www.RedistrictKings.com

Instagram

instagram.com/redistrictkings

Facebook

facebook.com/RedistrictKings

Twitter

twitter.com/RedistrictKings

14



7/23/2021

8

Audiencia Pública y Discusión

15

¿Cuál es su vecindario y cuáles son sus límites?

¿Qué otras áreas notables hay en el Condado y sus Ciudades, y 
cuáles son sus límites?

¿Alguna pregunta sobre las herramientas de mapeo?

SEGUNDA AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA (31 de agosto de 2021)

Discusión, luego Acción:

Vote en las áreas que cumplen con cada definición de AB 
849:

■ “Vecindarios” 

■ “comunidades de interés. . . que debe incluirse dentro de un solo distrito a 
los efectos de su representación efectiva y justa.”

20 de julio de 2021




